
Work Session Meeting 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA 

WORK SESSION 
and 

REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 24, 2016 

Town Hall Room 
Meridian Municipal Building 

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 

1. Call meeting to order at approximately 6:00 p.m. 

2. Approval of agenda 

3. Discussion 

A Host Form-Based Code session 

B. Master Plan Update 

4. Public Remarks 

5. Adjournment 

NOTE: The work session may be recessed and reconvened after the regular meeting 

Regular Meeting 

1. Call meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

2. Approval of agenda 

3. Approval of minutes 

A October 10, 2016 Regular Meeting 
B. October 10, 2016 Work Session Meeting 

4. Public remarks 

5. Communications 

A Housing Development Toolkit 



Planning Commission Agenda 
October 24, 2016 
Page 2 

6. Public Hearings 

A. 

B. 

Commission Review #16053 {Township Board). a Section 61 review of character 
location and extent for a 2.251 acre Land Preservation purchase located east of 
Carlton Street and northwest of Lake Drive 

Commission Review #16063 (Township Board), a Section 61 review of character, 
location and extent for a 13.25 acre land preservation purchase of property 
located east of Hagadorn Road and south of Mount Hope Road 

7. Unfinished Business 

A. Rezoning #16040 (Sumbal), request to rezone approximately nine acres located at 
2267 Saginaw Highway, 6217 Newton Road, and 6219 Newton Road from PO 
(Professional and Office), RD (Multiple Family), and RA (Single Family, Medium 
Density) to C-2 (Commercial). 

B. Commission Review #16053 {Township Board), a Section 61 review of character 
location and extent for a 2.251 acre Land Preservation purchase located east of 
Carlton Street and northwest of Lake Drive 

C. Commission Review #16063 (Township Board) a Section 61 review of character, 
location and extent for a 13.25 acre land preservation purchase of property 
located east of Hagadorn Road and south of Mount Hope Road 

8. Other Business 

9. Township Board, Planning Commission officer, committee chair, and staff comment or 
reports 

A. New Applications 

1. Zoning Amendment #16050 {Planning Commission, to amend the I (Industrial) 
ordinance to add instructional centers, outdoor seating, and mobile food 
vending units as permitted uses 

Rezoning #16060 (Summer Park Realty), to rezone 156 acres at 2874 Lake 
Lansing Road from RR (Rural Residential) to RAA (Single Family, Low 
Density) 

B. Update of Ongoing Projects 

i. Site Plans Received 

1. Site Plan Review #16-12 (Gligrs), to construct a 5,500 square foot 
office furniture warehouse at 2076 Towner Road 

ii. Site Plans Approved - NONE 

10. Public Remarks 

11. Adjournment 



Planning Commission Agenda 
October 24, 2016 
Page 3 

Post Script: John Scott-Craig 

The Planning Commission's Bylaws state agenda items shall not be introduced for discussion or 
public hearing that is opened after 10:00 p.m. The chair may approve exceptions when this rule 
would cause substantial backlog in Commission business (Rule 5.14 Limit on Introduction of 
Agenda Items). 

Persons wishing to appeal a decision of the Planning Commission to the Township Board in the 
granting of a Special Use Permit must do so within ten (10) days of the decision of the Planning 
Commission (Sub-section 86-189 of the Zoning Ordinance). 



Work Session Meeting 

1. Master Plan Update 

Regular Meeting 

1. Public Hearings 

TENTATIVE 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Work Session Meeting 
and 

Regular Meeting 

NOVEMBER 14, 2016 

Town Hall Room 
Meridian Municipal Building 

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 

A. Zoning Amendment #16050 (Planning Commission, to amend the I (Industrial) 
ordinance to add instructional centers, outdoor seating, and mobile food vending 
units as permitted uses 

B. Rezoning #16060 {Summer Park Realty), to rezone 156 acres at 287 4 Lake 
Lansing Road from RR (Rural Residential) to RAA (Single Family, Low Density) 

2. Unfinished Business 

3. Other Business 

G:\PLANNING\Plan Comm\AGENDAS\2016\10-24-16 agenda.doc 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

October 10, 2016 
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198 

853-4000, Town Hall Room, 7 :00 P .M. 

DRAFT 

PRESENT: Commissioners DeGroff, Honicky, Ianni, Jackson, Lane, Opsommer, Scott-Craig, 
Tenaglia 

ABSENT: Commissioner Van Coevering 
STAFF: Principal Planner Oranchak, Senior Planner Menser 

1. Call meeting to order 
Chair Scott-Craig called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

2. Approval of agenda 
Commissioner Ianni moved to approve the agenda. Seconded by Commissioner Jackson. 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried 8-0. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Commissioner Ianni moved to approve the Work Session Meeting Minutes of June 13, 2016, 
June 27, 2016, September 26, 2016 and the September 26, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
Seconded by Commissioner Lane. 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried 8-0. 

4. Public Remarks 
Chair Scott-Craig opened the floor for public remarks. 

Ahsan Sumbal, 900 Gulick Road, Okemos, stated he is requesting a rezoning for property located at 
2267 Saginaw Highway, 6217 Newton Road, and 6219 Newton Road from PO, RD and RA to C-2 as 
two of the parcels are land locked and cannot be developed. He stated the RA parcel which abuts 
Newton Road would remain an RA designation with a be1m. 

Neil Bowlby, 6020 Beechwood Drive, Haslett, voiced concern about public access to documents 
discussed during the work session. He suggested a build out analysis of the Township as a useful tool 
in framing the Master Plan in terms of maximum development. Mr.Bowlby indicated 60,000-80,000 
residents in Meridian Township is not desirable as it will lose its feture as a quaint community. He 
believed a vision of the Township relative to development limitation at this time would be beneficial. 

Chair Scott-Craig closed public remarks. 

5. Communications (None) 

6. Public hearings 
A. Rezoning # 16040 (Sumbal), request to rezone approximately nine acres located at 2267 Saginaw 

Highway, 6217 Newton Road, and 6219 Newton Road from PO (Professional and Office), RD 
(Multiple Family), and RA (Single Family, Medium Density) to C-2 (Commercial). 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT­
October 10, 2016 

Page 2 

Chair Scott-Craig opened the public hearing at 7:10 P.M. 

• Introduction by the Chair (announcement of procedures, time limits and protocols for public 
participation and applicants) 

• Summary of subject matter 
Senior Planner Menser summarized the rezoning request as outlined in staff memorandum 
dated October 10, 2016. 

• Applicant 
Ahsan Sumbal, 900 Gulick Road, Okemos, availed himself for Planning Commission questions 
on his rezoning request. 

Planning Commission discussion: 

Commissioner Tenaglia indicated Mr. Sumbal has been patient with the Township throughout this 
rezoning process and inquired about suspending Planning Commission rules to vote on the rezoning 
request the same night as the public hearing. 

Senior Planner Menser explained that the applicant had not submitted a written request for a vote on 
the rezoning request the same night as the public hearing when the legal notice had to be published. 
He added language to that affect must be included in the legal notice for a vote to take place the 
same night. 

Commissioner DeGroff noted the property was rezoned from RR to its current configuration in 
2005. He inquired as to the rationale for the "odd" configuration of the lots. 

Principal Planner Oranchak stated the Township Board created the boundaries for the zoning 
categories during the rezoning process in 2005. She believed the request was originally for 
commercial and, in order to provide a variety of uses on the site, the Board went with the four ( 4) 
different categories for transition purposes. 

Commissioner Ianni specified the rezoning predated the Township's mixed use planned unit 
development ordinance. 

Chair Scott-Craig noted there is a slight change in acreage for the RA parcel, from two (2) to 2.16 
acres. He stated that although the traffic report mentions the unpaved condition of Newton Road, it 
has now been paved. 

Chair Scott-Craig indicated setbacks are determined by ordinance which requires 100 feet between 
residential and commercial. 

Senior Planner Menser stated that without screening, the setback is 100 feet; with a double row of 
interlocking trees, the setback can be reduced to 60 feet. He noted that if, and when, a project is 
submitted for development, the Planning Depaitment will review and apply the setbacks, including 
details of the berm's height and width as well as species of trees. 

Chair Scott-Craig addressed the property to the nmth, Hammond Farms. He voiced concern this 
commercial business makes compost at the rear of the parcel, with the commensurate large pieces 
of machinery and trucks. Chair Scott-Craig did not believe "a lot of' residential was a good idea. 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT­
October 10, 2016 

Page 3 

He stated there is residential zoned property across the street which has been platted for homes. 

Commissioner Opsommer questioned whether the placement of the double row of trees and benn 
would be located on the boundary of the C-2 property or the RA property. 

Senior Planner Menser responded those details have yet to be determined, but will be decided on 
what is best for the site and the proposed development. 

Commissioner Opsommer believed C-2 to be a much better use of the property as there is no public 
transit available in the area. He stated Bath Township is clearly going in the direction of C-2 along 
Saginaw Highway. 

Chair Scott-Craig closed the public hearing at 7:23 P.M. 

7. Unfinished Business (None) 

8. Other Business (None) 

9. Township Board, Planning Commission officer, committee chair, and staff comment or reports 
Chair Scott Craig reported his attendance at the monthly Economic Development Corporation 
meeting where the formation of the CIA was discussed, along with dialogue about changes to the 
industrial zoned area off Grand River A venue to allow food to be sold and outdoor seating. He also 
attended the Environmental Commission meeting where work on the greenspace plan was discussed 
as well as a wetland use permit which will not come before the Planning Commission as it will be 
handled internally by staff. 

A. New Applications 
i. Commission Review #16063 (Township Board), a Section 61 review of character, location, and 

extent for a 13 .25 acre Land Preservation purchase of property located east of Hagadorn Road 
and south of Mount Hope Road 

ii. Commission Review #16053 (Township Board), a Section 61 review of character, location, and 
extent for a 2.251 acre Land Preservation purchase of property located east of Carlton Road and 
north of Lake Drive 

B. Update of Ongoing Projects 

1. Site Plans Received 

Site Plan Review# 16-10 (Hotel Development Services, LLC) to construct a 64,000 square foot 
hotel with 97 rooms on the southwest corner of Jolly Oak Road and Meridian Crossing Drive 

ii. Site Plans Approved - NONE 

10. Public remarks 
Chair Scott-Craig opened and closed public remarks. 



11. Adjournment 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes -DRAFT­
October I 0, 2016 

Page4 

Chair Scott-Craig adjourned the regular meeting at 7:27 P.M. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Sandra K. Otto 
Recording Secretary 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
WORK SESSION MINUTES 

October 10, 2016 

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198 
Town Hall Room, 517-853-4560 

DRAFT 

PRESENT: Chair Scott-Craig, Vice-Chair Jackson, Commissioners Honicky, Ianni, Tenaglia, 
Opsommer, DeGroff and Lane 

ABSENT: Commissioner Van Coevering 
STAFF: Principal Planner Gail Oranchak 

1. Call meeting to order 
Chair Scott-Craig called the work session meeting to order at approximately 6:00 P.M. 

2. Approval of agenda 
Commissioner Ianni moved approval of the agenda. Seconded by Commissioner Honicky. 

Voice vote. Motion canied unanimously 

3. Discussion: Master Plan Update 

• P. 4 (Paragraph 4) of the Executive Summaiy, change "the Community of Choice" to "a 
Community of Choice." 

• P. 5 Replace "2l51 centmy" 
• Architectural standards provide a vision for what the Township might look like. Adopt for new 

and redevelopment. 
• P.6. "Inclusion" refers to inclusionary zoning and mixing of different types of housing, Promote 

different housing types, mix uses, achieve more closely related uses 
• "Inclusion" is vague. Acknowledge the intention of creating vibrant town centers through 

inclusionary zoning and mixed use core in PICA areas 
• Impacts affect not only PICAs or core areas but by combining Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 

categories elements of inclusion are brought into all areas of the Township for example Business 
and Technology category. 

• Flexibility is added since multiple types of land uses will be pennitted in some classifications. 
• Same consolidation happening in other areas, not only residential. 
• P. 6. Delete "inclusion." 
• P. 6. Replace "assumes" with "retains" 
• P. 7. Add the number of current residential land use categories, then insert "from#" before "to 3." 
• Public request for a glossary hyperlinked to Plan body, for example "mixed use," "clustering," 

"smart growth" 

Chair Scott-Craig recessed the meeting at approximately 6:55 p.m. 

Chair Scott-Craig reconvened the meeting at approximately 7:30 p.m. 

• P. 13. Add "opportunities for" before "redevelopment 
• P. 14. Insert a period after "categories." Delete "which promote" and begin a new sentence with 

THIS PROMOTES 
• P. 15. Delete capitalization of "Smart Growth" 



Planning Commission Work Session Meeting Minutes 
September 26, 2016 

Page2 

• Delete dedication to Jim Harrison 
• Change document's page numbering from chapters to consecutive 
• Acquire more and better photographs, e.g., new fire station 
• Review the FLUM for needed changes to land use designations, e.g. BR-69, Hagadorn Road; 

Abbott and Lake Lansing as a possible fourth PICA or eligible for accessory housing units 
• Consider property owner requests for FLUM categ01y changes 
• Unless near PICAs, change bright yellow (R3 category) designation on the FLUM to R2 -

Meadows, Georgetown, White hills, Wood Ridge 
• Two new Land Preservation purchases pending, one near Mt. Hope and one near Carlton Street 

4. Public remarks 
• Bill McConnell, 4376 Manitou, Okemos commented on the types of properties included in the 

FLUM's Institutional category 

5. Adjournment 
Chair Scott-Craig adjourned the regular meeting at approximately 8:30 P.M. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Gail Oranchak 
Principal Planner 

G:\PLANNING\PLANNING COMMISSION\MINUTES\I 6 I 010 



HOUSING DEVELOPMENT TOOLKIT 

September 2016 



Contents 

Executive Summary .................. , ............................................................................................................... 2 

I. Introduction ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

II. Prevalence of Local Barriers to Housing Development ................................................................... 5 

Ill. Effects of Local Barriers to Housing Development ......................................................................... 6 

IV. Framework for Modern Housing Strategies ................................................................................. 13 

V. Toolkit - Taking Action ..................................................................................................................... 14 

1 



Executive Summary 

Over the past three decades, local baniers to housing development have intensified, particularly 
in the high-growth metropolitan areas increasingly fueling the national economy. The 
accumulation of such baniers - including zoning, other land use regulations, and lengthy 
development approval processes - has reduced the ability of many housing markets to respond to 
growing demand. The growing severity of undersupplied housing markets is jeopardizing 
housing affordability for working families, increasing income inequality by reducing less-skilled 
workers' access to high-wage labor markets, and stifling GDP growth by driving labor migration 
away from the most productive regions. By modernizing their approaches to housing 
development regulation, states and localities can restrain unchecked housing cost growth, protect 
homeowners, and strengthen their economies. 

Locally-constructed ba1Tiers to new housing development include beneficial environmental 
protections, but also laws plainly designed to exclude multifamily or affordable housing. Local 
policies acting as ba1Tiers to housing supply include land use restrictions that make developable 
land much more costly than it is inherently, zoning restrictions, off-street parking requirements, 
arbitrary or antiquated preservation regulations, residential conversion restrictions, and 
unnecessarily slow permitting processes. The accumulation of these ba1Tiers has reduced the 
ability of many housing markets to respond to growing demand. 

Accumulated barriers to housing development can result in significant costs to households, 
local economies, and the environment. 

• Housing production has not been able to keep up with demand in many localities, 
impacting construction and other related jobs, limiting the requisite growth in population 
needed to sustain economic growth, and limiting potential tax revenue gains. 

• Baniers to housing development are exacerbating the housing affordability crisis, 
particularly in regions with high job growth and few rental vacancies. 

• Significant baniers to new housing development can cause working families to be pushed 
out of the job markets with the best opportunities for them, or prevent them from moving 
to regions with higher-paying jobs and stronger career tracks. Excessive barriers to 
housing development result in increasing drag on national economic growth and 
exacerbate income inequality. 

• When new housing development is limited region-wide, and particularly precluded in 
neighborhoods with political capital to implement even stricter local barriers, the new 
housing that does get built tends to be disproportionally concentrated in low-income 
communities of color, causing displacement and concerns of gentrification in those 
neighborhoods. Rising rents region-wide can exacerbate that displacement. 

• The long commutes that result from workers seeking out affordable housing far from job 
centers place a drain on their families, their physical and mental well-being, and 
negatively impact the environment through increased gas emissions. 

2 



• When rental and production costs go up, the cost of each unit of housing with public 
assistance increases, putting a strain on already-insufficient public resources for 
affordable housing, and causing existing programs to serve fewer households. 

Modernized housing regulation comes with significant benefits. 

• Housing regulation that allows supply to respond elastically to demand helps cities 
protect homeowners and home values while maintaining housing affordability. 

• Regions are better able to compete in the modem economy when their housing 
development is allowed to meet local needs. 

• Smart housing regulation optimizes transportation system use, reduces commute times, 
and increases use of public transit, biking and walking. 

• Modem approaches to zoning can also reduce economic and racial segregation, as recent 
research shows that strict land use regulations drive income segregation of wealthy 
residents. 

Cities and states across the country are interested in revising their often 1970s-era zoning codes 
and housing permitting processes, and increasingly recognize that updating local land use 
policies could lead to more new housing construction, better leveraging of limited financial 
resources, and increased connectivity between housing to transportation, jobs and amenities. 

This toolkit highlights actions that states and local jurisdictions have taken to promote 
healthy, responsive, affordable, high-opportunity housing markets, including: 

• Establishing by-right development 
• Taxing vacant land or donate it to non-profit developers 
• Streamlining or shortening permitting processes and timelines 
• Eliminate off-street parking requirements 
• Allowing accessory dwelling units 
• Establishing density bonuses 
• Enacting high-density and multifamily zoning 
• Employing inclusionary zoning 
• Establishing development tax or value capture incentives 
• Using property tax abatements 

3 



"We can work together to break dmvn rules that stand in the way of building new housing and 
that keepfamiliesfi·om moving to growing, dynamic cities." 

-- President Obama, remarks to the US. Conference o.f Mayors, Janumy 21, 2016 

A stable, functioning housing market is vital to our nation's economic strength and resilience. 
Businesses rely on responsive housing markets to facilitate growth and employee recruitment. 
Construction workers, contractors, and realtors depend on stable housing markets to fuel their 
careers. And the availability of quality, affordable housing is foundational for every family - it 
determines which jobs they can access, which schools their children can attend, and how much 
time they can spend together at the end of a day's commutes. 

Our nation's housing market was in crisis when President Obama took office. In the first quarter 
of 2009, national home prices had fallen roughly 20 percent since mid-2005, leaving nearly 13 
million households underwater. Today, the market nationwide has made tremendous strides, as 
the recovery helped households regain $6.3 trillion of the real estate equity lost during the 
recession and lifted 7.4 million households out of negative equity since 2011, more than cutting 
in half the number of homeowners underwater. 

This national recovery, while central to our broader economic recovery, has occurred during a 
period of increasing awareness of underlying regional challenges in housing markets. The 
recovery has been measured in home and property values but new production starts have not kept 
pace with historic levels we saw before the recession. In a growing number of metropolitan 
areas, the returning health of the housing market and vibrant job growth haven't led to resurgent 
construction industries and expanding housing options for working families, due to state and 
local rules inhibiting new housing development that have proliferated in recent decades. In such 
regions, these rules have resulted in undersupplied markets, reducing options for working 
families and causing housing costs to grow much faster than wages and salaries. And as 
Matthew Desmond recently documented in Evicted, families facing extreme rent burden often 
suffer lasting trauma resulting from their housing insecurity, destabilizing their lives and marring 
their prospects for upward economic mobility.' 

As fewer families have been able to find affordable housing in the regions with the best jobs for 
them, labor mobility has slowed, exacerbating income inequality and stifling our national 
economic growth. But this hasn't happened everywhere. In more and more regions across the 
country, local and neighborhood leaders have said yes, in our backyard, we need to break down 
the rules that stand in the way of building new housing- because we want new development to 
replace vacant lots and rundown zombie properties, we want our children to be able to afford 
their first home, we want hardworking families to be able to take the next job on their ladder of 
opportunity, and we want our community to be part of the solution in reducing income inequality 
and growing the economy nationwide. 

This toolkit highlights the steps those communities have taken to modernize their housing 
strategies and expand options and opportunities for hardworking families. 

4 



Prevalence of Local Barriers to Housing Development 

Over the past three decades, local barriers to housing development have intensified, particularly 
in the high-growth metropolitan areas increasingly fueling the national economy. Locally­
constructed baiTiers to new housing development include. beneficial environmental protections or 
well-intentioned permitting processes or historic preservation rules, but also laws plainly 
designed to exclude multifamily or affordable housing. Local policies acting as barriers to 
housing supply include land use restrictions that make developable land much more costly than it 
is inherently, zoning restrictions, off-street parking requirements, arbitrary or antiquated 
preservation regulations, residential conversion restrictions, and unnecessarily slow permitting 
processes. 

Though no comprehensive and unifmm measure for such barriers exists, given the wide range of 
local regulations and processes affecting housing development volumes and timelines, several 
national and local indicators suppmt the observations of housing researchers and practitioners 
that such barriers have tightened. Researchers examining proxy measures - including the 
prevalence of zoning and land use cases in state courts, which con-elate strongly with static 
indices of housing baniers and supply constraint surveys - have found that bainers to housing 
development increased rapidly from 1970 to 1990, and continue to increase through the present 
day.2 Researchers have also documented a sharp increase in the gap between home prices and 
construction costs, with stringent housing regulations now driving cost increases previously 
shaped by construction costs and quality improvements.3.4 Localized studies have supported 
these national conclusions - documenting sharp increases in zoning and other land use 
restrictions in metropolitan Boston,5 New York City,6 Los Angeles,7 and San Francisco.8 

Real Construction Costs and House Prices Over Time 
Index, 1980=100 

250 
20B 

220 

190 Real House Prices 

160 

130 
Real Construction Costs 

100 

70 
1980 1984 1988 1992 1996 2000 2004 2008 2012 

Source: Gyourko, Malloy (2015) 

5 



Barriers to housing development are erected largely at the local level, and vary widely across 
states and metropolitan areas as a result. But the intensity and impact of such barriers are most 
evident in the vibrant job-generating regions where fervent demand far outstrips supply. Though 
popular coverage of these challenges has been most focused on the Bay Area, Seattle, and major 
East Coast cities, Los Angeles provides a clear illustration of the impact of the primary barrier to 
development - restrictive zoning. In 1960, Los Angeles was zoned to accommodate 10 million 
people; after decades of population growth and increased demand, the city is today zoned for 
only 4.3 million people.9 As Los Angeles leaders face a housing affordability and homelessness 
crisis, Mayor Garcetti and members of the City Council have tackled this problem by endorsing 
state plans to increase development and pushing for updated city plans and approval processes to 
facilitate new housing constrnction, in addition to committing new city funds toward affordable 
housing. 

Los Angeles - Zoned Residential Capacity Over Time 

10 mtlllon 10 n,1111011 

o m1111on -po1n1la ·un Ci1pacll)' 
8 1111111 II 

;,nl por utnllon 

7 mllllOII 

0 1111111011 

0 1111111011 
,i 1111111 n 

•I IHIII IOII 

3 1111111011 

2 mllllon 

l mllllon 
\ V I 

- 60% 
0-1--- -------------- -----

1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 

Source: Morrow (2016) 

The vast majority of the nation's largest cities are feeling the crush of sharply increased housing 
costs outpacing wages, with 9 of the largest 11 cities seeing rising rents and tightening vacancy 
rates, but this problem is now being felt in smaller cities and non-coastal locations that have 
historically enjoyed the benefits that come with an adequate supply of housing affordable to low­
and moderate-income families. Growing, dynamic cities like Atlanta, Denver, and Nashville 
used to be able to tout housing affordability as a key asset - but now see rents rising above the 
reach of many working families. 10 Inland cities have experienced some of the largest increases in 
rent in recent years, despite lacking the topological space constraints faced by coastal cities. 

Effects of Local Barriers to Housing Development 

The accumulation of state and local barriers to housing development - including zoning, other 
land use regulations, and unnecessarily lengthy development approval processes - has reduced 
the ability of many housing markets to respond to growing demand. The increasing severity of 

6 



undersupplied housing markets is jeopardizing housing affordability for working families, 
exacerbating income inequality by reducing workers' access to higher-wage labor markets, and 
stifling GDP growth by driving labor migration away from the most productive regions. 

These effects are increasingly visible in communities nationwide. In just the last 10 years, the 
number of very low-income renters paying more than half their income for rent has increased by 
almost 2.5 million households, to 7. 7 million nationwide, in part because barriers to housing 
development are limiting housing supply.11 Since 1960, the share of renters paying more than 30 
percent of their income for rent has more than doubled from 24 percent to 49 percent. 12 And over 
that time, real household income increased by 18 percent, but inflation adjusted rents rose by 64 
percent. 

Median rents vs. median household income, 1980-2014 
Indexed: 1980= 100 

150 

140 

130 

120 

110 

100 

90 
1980 1985 

--Household income --Rents 

1990 1995 2000 2005 
Source: Census Bureau; BLS; Haver; CEA calculations 

2010 

Emerging research has shown that in areas with high-cost housing such as California, zoning and 
other land-use controls contribute significantly to recent sharp cost increases, reflecting the 
increasing difficulty of obtaining regulatory approval for building new homes. 13 

Not all barriers to housing development have negative impacts - local land use policies and 
regulations can increase the supply of well-located affordable housing, address externalities such 
as environmental impacts associated with development, create better connections between 
housing options accessible to transit, and support the fiscal health of states and localities. But the 
accumulation of even well-intentioned land-use policies can restrict housing availability; create 
uncertainty for developers and limit private investment; exacerbate the imbalance between jobs 
and housing; and induce urban sprawl. 

Costs and negative impacts of excessive barriers to housing development 

7 



Housing production has failed to expand in too many regions with strong demand, artificially 
depressing the availability of construction and related jobs, limiting the ability for local 
populations to expand in response to job growth, and reducing the potential for increased local 
tax revenue. In these regions, new market-rate construction shifts toward predominantly, and 
sometimes exclusively, larger or higher-end units as a manifestation of supply constraints, 
because when there are large fixed costs to building, as is the case when land use policies are 
onerous, even developers that aren't profit-maximizing find it difficult to make profits from 
smaller or more affordable units. 

Barriers to housing development are exacerbating the housing affordability crisis, pa1iicularly 
in vibrant regions with high job growth and few rental vacancies. 14

•
15

•
16 The most recent data 

shows that half of renters pay more than 3 0 percent of their income in rent, 17 and more than 1 in 
4 are severely rent-burdened, paying more than 50 percent of their income in rent. 18 For families 
working to buy their first home, rent burdens delay their plans, making it more difficult to save 
for a down payment. While the housing market recovery has meant growing home values for 
existing homeowners, barriers to development concentrate those gains among existing 
homeowners, pushing the costs of ownership out ofreach for too many first-time buyers. This 
has contributed to a lower homeownership rate in the US, which has fallen to its lowest level in 
50 years. 19 Homelessness is on the rise in some of our nation's most rent-burdened cities despite 
continued decreases in homelessness nationwide - for example, according to figures released by 
local homelessness coalitions, Washington, D.C. saw a 31 percent increase in family 
homelessness last year amid a 14 percent increase in homelessness overall, and homelessness 
grew by 6 percent in Seattle and Los Angeles. 

Increasingly, working families are pushed out of the job markets with the best opportunities for 
them, or can't afford to move to regions with higher-paying jobs and stronger career tracks. As 
Jason Furman recently discussed in a National Press Club speech, this phenomenon exacerbates 
income inequality. For the first time in over 100 years, income convergence across states has 
stopped, as population flows to wealthier regions has decreased - which researchers attribute to 
increased housing prices as a result of high local barriers to housing development.20 Where 
housing markets are able to respond more elastically, workers can shift to meet job and wage 
growth through relocation, reducing income inequality. 

When large flows of workers are unable to move to the jobs where they would be most 
productive, local barriers result in increasing drag on national economic growth. A recent 
study noted that in theoretical models of mobility, economic research suggests our Gross 
Domestic Product would have been more than 10 percent higher in 2009 if workers and capital 
had freely moved so that the relative wage distribution remained at its 1964 level.21 Most of this 
loss in wages and productivity is caused by increased constraints to housing supply in high­
productivity regions, including zoning regulations and other local rules. This estimate is 
tentative, and would imply that some cities would see counterfactual employment increases of a 
significant magnitude resulting from reduced housing restrictions, but the underlying point is 
clear: output is lost when the supply of workers to high-productivity regions is restrained. Over 
time, this effect can be large enough to meaningfully reduce the nation's overall economic 
output. 

8 



When new housing development is limited region-wide, and particularly precluded in 
neighborhoods with political capital to implement even stricter local barriers, any new 
development tends to be disproportionally concentrated in low-income communities of color, 
causing displacement and concerns of gentrification in those neighborhoods, raising market 
rents within neighborhoods experiencing rapid changes while failing to reduce housing cost 
growth region-wide.22 As rents rise region-wide in response to insufficient housing supply, this 
displacement is exacerbated. Lowered region-wide barriers to new housing development would 
lead to more equitable distribution, allowing neighborhoods to retain character and resources as 
they evolve, while facilitating effective affordable housing preservation options by preventing 
excessively rapid change that generates displacement and dislocation. 

As workers get pushed further and further from job centers - driving from Modesto to San 
Francisco, for example, often two hours each way - excessively long commutes pull them away 
from time with their families, increase strains on mental health and happiness, and contributing 
to further greenhouse gas emissions.23 .24

,
25

,
26 The impact of these strains is being felt throughout 

the middle class, hurting workers that provide critical services like teachers, police officers and 
firefighters. For example, recent reports highlighted at least a dozen San Jose police officers 
living in RVs in a parking lot near Police Department headquarters to cope with the long 
commutes required by the lack of affordable housing nearby. 27 

When barriers to housing development drive up rental and production costs, they constitute a 
countervailing force on housing assistance programs, reducing the impact of already-insufficient 
government resources for affordable housing. This strain on public resources occurs at all 
levels - federal, state and local. While President Obama' s budget calls for increasing 
investments to provide affordable housing and end family homelessness, HUD's existing project­
based and housing choice vouchers could serve more families if the per-unit cost wasn't pushed 
higher and higher by rents rising in the face of barriers to new development. In order to build 
affordable housing, developers are often forced to supplement funding sources like tax credits 
with additional equities and loans, drawing down on state-allocated housing finance agency 
resources and city-held CDBG dollars. As each of these sources is piled onto a critical affordable 
housing resource, it is not available for preservation or additional new affordable housing 
elsewhere in the region. 

Benefits of smart housing regulation 

Housing regulation that allow supply to respond elastically to demand helps cities protect 
homeowners and home values while maintaining housing affordability. As cities make 
investments to attract residents and businesses, vibrant hubs of jobs and culture have attracted far 
more potential residents than many cities' current zoning practices can accommodate. Without 
building adequate housing to meet the increased demand, cities that have invested in services for 
their residents see rents soar, making those benefits inaccessible to those they were intended to 
help. By allowing housing development to respond to demand, cities would capture the increased 
tax revenue they hope to draw by attracting more residents, and relieve pressure on existing 
working families that would otherwise be priced out of their communities and forced to move. 

9 



Regions are better able to compete in the contemporary economy when their housing 
development is allowed to meet local needs. When jobs and people move freely, local economies 
flourish, as adequate housing development reduces mismatches between housing and 
infrastructure, or housing and jobs. For decades, Sunbelt cities with more permeable boundaries 
have enjoyed outsized growth by allowing sprawl to meet their need for adequate housing 
supply. Space constrained cities can achieve similar gains, however, by building up with infill, 
reducing the eyesores of vacant lots and vacant or rundown buildings that go undeveloped in 
highly constrained regulatory environments. This approach facilitates cities expanding their 
economies across all sectors, including the essential service sector jobs that allow cities to 
remain attractive, rather than concentrating growth at the high end of the economy. 

Smart housing regulation optimizes transportation system use, reduces commute times, and 
increases use of public transit, biking and walking. A preponderance of a metro area's 
commuters living far from work in pursuit of affordable housing prevents infrastructure, 
including public transit, from being used efficiently and effectively. Smart housing regulation 
would close the gap between proximity and affordability. More residents with access to walking, 
biking and public transit options also means less congestion on the roads and overall reductions 
in traffic congestion, greenhouse gas emissions, and commute times. 

Modem approaches to zoning can also reduce economic and racial segregation, as recent 
research shows that strict land use regulations drive income segregation of wealthy residents. 28 

Inclusionary zoning laws that facilitate working families accessing high-opportunity 
neighborhoods are effective in reducing segregation and improving educational outcomes for 
students in low-income families.29 Research also finds that more localized pressure to regulate 
land use is linked to higher rates of income segregation, while more state involvement in setting 
standards and baselines for land use is connected to lower income segregation, reinforcing to the 
key role that states can play in ensuring access to affordable housing is an even playing field for 
all residents. 30 

10 



Spotlight: Local Barriers and Housing Discrimination 

In tight rental markets, renters flood landlords advertising quality, affordable housing. The 
stronger the local barriers to development, and the tighter the market, the higher the demand for 
units. High demand often reflects quality housing options; however, when rental supply is 
unresponsive to demand, competition can be high for even low-quality units. In such situations, 
it can be extremely difficult for low-income families to find the quality affordable housing they 
need, even when they receive a HUD Housing Choice Voucher to aid them with their rent -
because some landlords simply refuse to rent to voucher-holders, a practice particularly jarring to 
the thousands of families struggling to escape homelessness through use of a housing voucher. 

Federal fair housing law explicitly prohibits landlords from discriminating against renters on the 
basis of race, religion, familial status or other protected classes. But many states and localities 
consider discrimination on the basis of voucher payment for rent to be legal in the absence of 
explicit source-of-income protections. Available evidence indicates that renter discrimination is 
widespread, and most harmful in high-barrier rental markets with limited housing options for 
families receiving rental assistance, hindering efforts to enable more low-income families to 
access affordable housing in opportunity-rich neighborhoods. 

Discrimination against voucher holders is prevalent nationwide, especially in high-cost markets, 
and remains prevalent even in the 13 states and dozens of localities that have made such 
discrimination explicitly illegal. Though cities like Chicago, Philadelphia, and Pittsburgh have 
these laws in place, local investigative repo1ting has documented high rates of ongoing, illegal 
renter discrimination. For example, landlords post "no Section 8" tags on sites like Craigslist.org, 
especially for units in relatively low-poverty areas where constraints to housing development are 
often highest. The rarely-enforced fine for this violation in Chicago is $500. 

Renter discrimination reduces voucher success rates, limiting low-income households' housing 
options in general, and particularly their ability to move to high-opportunity neighborhoods. The 
Administration's actions to increase economic mobility, reduce local barriers to housing 
development, advance fair housing, end homelessness, and expand access to opportunity depend 
in part on the ability of low-income families to lease units in neighborhoods of their choosing. 

Barriers to housing development that prevent supply from responding elastically to demand put 
additional pressure on landlords and the rental market. Discrimination, even inadvertent 
discrimination, increases when market conditions increase competition among renters. 
Unsurprisingly, many cities with the highest local barriers have seen increases in homelessness 
in recent years, while nationwide homelessness has been sharply in decline. 

Vouchers are a critical tool for meeting the Administration's goals of ending veteran, chronic, 
and family homelessness. The President's historic FY 2017 budget proposal to end homelessness 
by 2020 for every family with children nationwide would invest $11 billion over 10 years, 
primarily in vouchers, to end families' homelessness, stabilize their housing, and give them a 
foundation to succeed economically. These goals will be easier to achieve if local leaders reduce 
barriers to housing development and end renter discrimination in their jurisdictions. 

11 



Framework for Modern Housing Strategies 

Cities across the country are interested in revising their often l 950s-era zoning codes and 
housing permitting processes, and increasingly recognize that updating local land use policies 
could lead to more new housing construction, better leveraging of limited financial resources, 
and increased connectivity between housing to transportation, jobs and amenities. The 
President's FY 2017 HUD budget includes a $300 million proposal for Local Housing Policy 
Grants to help facilitate those cities' success in modernizing their housing regulatory approaches. 

In markets with high demand but currently inelastic supply, these modem housing approaches 
are likely to lead to more new housing construction, including multifamily rental construction. 
Though much of that housing would likely be market-rate housing, its introduction into the 
marketplace would help slow cost growth in existing and othe1wise affordable housing. In 
markets that have not yet but are poised to experience rapid economic growth in the near to mid­
term (e.g., as result of their advantageous location, emerging industrial growth, or surge in 
resource extraction), promising practices can be embedded into local action as they develop their 
economic growth strategy to ensure that sustained economic growth is achieved. 

The Administration has also taken action to reinforce these practices, as the Department of 
Transportation now examines cities' housing regulatory approaches, and their ability to respond 
elastically to new demand generated by transit projects, as part of their Small Starts and New 
Starts project reviews. 

Cities like Chicago, Seattle, Sacramento, and Tacoma and states like California and 
Massachusetts have already begun to foster more affordable housing opportunities by removing 
restrictions, implementing transit-oriented zoning ordinances, and speeding up permitting and 
construction processes. 

Role of states and localities 

Both states and cities have proven they can break free of the constraints that have stifled 
responsive supply and driven up housing costs across the country. While most states have 
devolved land use control to localities and remain relatively hands-off when it comes to land use 
planning, a number of states have begun to take a more active role in reducing regulatory 
barriers. A strong baseline at the state level creates an even playing field for local land use 
decisions. 

Cities and other localities have the greatest opportunity to innovate in efforts to reduce barriers to 
housing supply, given their proximity to the effects of either a constrained or flexible supply. 
Without action, excessive local barriers drive up housing costs, undermining affordable housing 
at most income levels, and resulting in declines in homeownership. Demonstrated success in 
addressing these challenges can help overcome apprehension about neighborhoods evolving and 
growing through new development. 

12 



Spotlight: Impacts on the Ground 

"As the head of E1\1Path, a Boston-based non-profit, that helps low-income families move out of 
poverty, one of the greatest hurdles my staff and participants face is finding affordable housing. 
When we first stmt working with our participants, many of them are homeless and trying to 
make their way from emergency shelters into pe1manent housing. Affordable housing in Greater 
Boston is in such short supply, and the costs are so high that, at their average wages ($10/hr), 
participants have to work 97 hours a week in order to afford the Fair Market rent on a one­
bedroom apartment. If they seek lower cost housing outside of Boston, moving often rips apart 
the work, childcare, and support systems they count on to maintain their precarious family and 
financial stability. 

And my staff experience similar problems. Pay at my organization is far from minimum wage. 
The average employee at E1\1Path has a Bachelor's degree and makes about $26/hour. But even 
at this level, it is hard for staff to find affordable housing in the city and many of them move as 
much as 25+ miles away in order lower housing costs. When they do this, they add hours of 
commuting to their work week and easily spend $360+/month for their monthly transit passes. 
We routinely have to alter work schedules and the offices where our staff work in order to 
accommodate their commuting needs. 

As can be seen from all of this, high housing costs create a drag on everything we are trying to 
do: stabilize people ' s lives, decrease their dependence on public supports, get them into the 
workforce, and run our non-profit business. It is fundamentally important to address this issue if 
we are going to succeed in improving our economy and opportunity for low and middle income 
workers." 

13 

Elisabeth Babcock 
President and CEO 

E1\1Path - Economic Mobility Pathways 
Boston, MA 



Toolkit - Taking Action 

This toolkit highlights actions taken by states and local jurisdictions to promote healthy, 
responsive, high-opportunity housing markets, despite the common and sometimes challenging 
political barriers to refonn and improvement. This list is not exhaustive - there is a substantial 
amount of good work being done all around the country - but provides several potential starting 
points for local efforts to modernize housing planning and development. 

1. Establish by-right development 

Most development today goes through a discretionary review process prior to approval, such 
as public hearings or local legislative actions. These processes predispose development 
decisions to become centers of controversy, and can add significant costs to the overall 
development budget due to the delay and uncertainty they engender. The tradeoffs that 
developers make to account for those additional costs can result in lost affordability, quality, 
or quantity of units developed. "As-of-right" or "by-right" development allows projects to be 
approved administratively when proposals meet local zoning requirements. 31 Such 
streamlining allows for greater certainty and more efficient development and, depending on a 
locality's regulatory approach, supports lessening of barriers from density limits and other 
zoning requirements. It can also be targeted to achieve public goals by making "by-right" 
approval contingent on increased affordable housing, transit-oriented development, or energy 
efficiency. 

A 2014 report by the Urban Land Institute concludes that "municipalities can facilitate more 
efficient development time frames and reduce costs by enabling more by-right development. 
This can be accomplished by relaxing restrictions related to density, building height, unit 
size, and parking minimums, thereby freeing developers from the need to seek waivers, 
variances, or rezoning." 32 

Some states have enacted or pursued these approaches in efforts to facilitate affordable 
housing development. In California, Gov. Jerry Brown recently proposed a policy that would 
ensure that new developments that conform with existing local zoning rules and include set­
asides for affordable housing would be approved "by right" - as long as the project is not 
located on sensitive sites, such as wetlands, farmland, flood plains, and earthquake fault 
zones, additional discretionary review requirements would be no longer be required, 
facilitating more rapid development of affordable housing at lower costs. 

States can also encourage localities to allow by-right development. For instance, 
Massachusetts allows communities to designate areas as Priority Development Sites, a 
designation that provides an incentive for municipalities to allow by-right development in 
localities where they seek to encourage economic growth. 33 

Fairfax County, VA, has implemented by-right development in seven districts, with the goal 
of encouraging economic development through flexibility in zoning regulations and 
administrative processes in older commercial areas. These more flexible zoning regulations 

14 



include 40-50 foot increases in building height, parking requirement reductions, and 
abbreviated fees and approval processes for development changes. 34 

2. Tax vacant land or donate it to non-profit developers 

Nationwide, the number of vacant residential units increased from 7 million in 2000 to 10 
million in 2014.35 Vacant and abandoned properties not only represent lost housing 
opportunities, but can cause significant harm to the surrounding neighborhood. Strategies to 
address these properties can reduce blight and place them back into productive use. In-fill 
development can have significant environmental benefits, as well-resourced urban land can 
be accessed by more people and can also result in larger ridership for public transit when in 
proximity to city centers. A 2014 study found that in the Cleveland area, the sale price of 
homes within 500 feet of a vacant property depreciated by 1.7 percent in low-poverty areas 
and 2.1 percent in medium-poverty areas,36 while a 2010 University of Pittsburgh study 
concluded that the rate of violent crime within 250 feet of a vacant property is 15% higher 
than that within 250 and 353 feet from the property.37 Local governments bear the costs of 
these vacant properties. A 2010 study found that Philadelphia spends more than $20 million 
annually to maintain 40,000 vacant properties, which cost the city over $5 million per year in 
lost tax revenue38

. 

Localities often face challenges in identifying vacant properties,39 but many jurisdictions 
have enacted vacant property registration ordinances that require individuals to register 
vacant land and often pay a fee, with cities in Florida, California, Illinois and Michigan 
leading the way in implementation. Many localities in these states increase the fees the 
longer a property remains vacant, which encourages lot owners to put their properties to 
more productive use, such as redevelopment.40 Once vacant property has been identified, 
jurisdictions are able to take action to combat the lost revenue and blight that come with 
vacant property by taxing vacant land or donating to non-profit developers. 

At the city level, Dallas has addressed vacant property through a land bank, a "government­
created nonprofit corporation designed to convert tax-delinquent and vacant properties into 
affordable housing or other productive uses,"41 which provides "a tool to enable cities to 
more effectively ... pursue tax foreclosure on unproductive vacant properties in return 
for. .. placement into productive use in the development of affordable housing. "42 Dallas also 
acquires vacant lots for affordable single-family housing development, and allows nonprofit 
groups to develop affordable housing by purchasing foreclosed vacant lots or surplus vacant 
lots from the city's inventory at below market price, enabling Dallas to reduce the blight of 
vacant lots and foster more affordable housing development.43 

3. Streamline or shorten permitting processes and timelines 

Permitting processes can introduce yet another source of cost and uncertainty in the effort to 
increase housing supply through production. Unnecessarily lengthy permitting processes 
restrict long-run housing supply responsiveness to demand, and also present an inefficiency 
for city planners and reviewers whose time could be more effectively spent on essential 

15 



tasks. Most localities' pem1itting processes do not fully leverage new technology to achieve 
greater speed, reliability and efficiency. 

San Diego and Austin are two of many cities that have tackled these challenges, streamlining 
and shortening their permitting processes. San Diego's Expedite Program allows for 
expedited permit processing for eligible affordable/in-fill housing and sustainable building 
projects, with a 5 business day initial review.44 fu 2000, the Austin City Council created the 
S.M.A.R.T. Housing program which offers developers of housing that serves low-income 
families waivers for development fees and expedited development review; since 2005, more 
than 4,900 housing units have been completed through this approach. 

States have also taken action, with both Rhode Island and Massachusetts driving localities 
toward more streamlined processes. The Rhode Island 2009 Expedited Permitting for 
Affordable Housing Act provides state permitting agencies with strict deadlines for making 
their decisions, for transit-oriented, dense, or historic preservation projects that are large 
enough to meaningfully increase availability of affordable housing in their communities. 
Massachusetts developed a model set of local permitting practices, with guidelines including 
predictable impact fees, use of objective criteria for by-right zoning, and uniform timelines. 
By incentivizing efficient permit processing at the state and local level, communities are 
better positioned to accelerate development, resulting in increased housing production, more 
stability for contractors and construction workers, and less risk for investors. 

4. Eliminate off-street parking requirements 

Parking requirements generally impose an undue burden on housing development, 
particularly for transit-oriented or affordable housing. When transit-oriented developments 
are intended to help reduce automobile dependence, parking requirements can undermine that 
goal by inducing new residents to drive, thereby counteracting city goals for increased use of 
public transit, walking and biking. Such requirements can also waste developable land, and 
reduce the potential for other amenities to be included; a recent Urban Land fustitute study 
found that minimum parking requirements were the most noted barrier to housing 
development in the course of their research. 45 By reducing parking and designing more 
com1ected, walkable developments, cities can reduce pollution, traffic congestion and 
improve economic development. Businesses that can be accessed without a car can see 
increased revenue, increased use of alternative modes of transportation, and improved health 
outcomes for residents. 

These requirements have a disproportionate impact on housing for low-income households 
because these families tend to own fewer vehicles but are nonetheless burdened by the extra 
cost of parking's inclusion in the development. The significant cost of developing parking­
from $5,000 per surface parking spot to $60,000 underground- is incorporated at the start of 
the project, which can impede the viability and affordability of the construction.46 

fu 2012, Seattle's city council voted to relax parking requirements, eliminating requirements 
in center-city areas with frequent transit services within V,i mile, and reducing them by 50 
percent in neighborhoods outside of those centers given the same minimum level of transit 

16 



service - sparking a wave of new development, including hundreds of units with no 
associated parking spaces. The study that accompanied this legislative change found that 
parking reduced the potential number of units at a site and increased the expected rental costs 
by 50 percent for a building without parking as compared to that with the mandated level of 
surface parking. 47 

Cities such as Denver, Minneapolis and New York City have also demonstrated success in 
taking on minimum parking requirements - Denver lowered parking minimums for low­
income housing, Minneapolis reduced requirements near transit stops, and New York City 
eliminated parking requirements for affordable housing located within Yi mile of a subway 
entrance. The Association of Bay Area Governments also published a rubric guiding parking 
requirement reform across the region, which accompanies the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission's Smart Parking Toolbox and funds parking plans for transit station areas. And 
in 2015, the State of California enacted a statewide override of local parking requirements for 
all residential projects near transit that incorporated affordable units. 

5. Enact high-density and multifamily zoning 

Local zoning code changes that allow for the development of higher-density and multifamily 
housing, especially in transit zones, can help to alleviate some of the pressure of the growing 
population in many city centers. In Massachusetts, the Smart Growth Zoning act provides 
incentives to local governments that make zoning changes and establish smart growth zoning 
districts, to foster, near transit nodes and city/town centers, denser residential or mixed-use 
zoning districts, including affordable units.48 More recently, in June, the Fairfax, VA County 
Board of Supervisors approved changes to zoning codes to allow for taller buildings near 
Metro stations.49 In Seattle, the city has nearly 800 micro-units with another 1,500 or so in 
the pipeline - more than any other city - yet, changes to the zoning code will disallow future 
approvals of such housing. 50 

6. Allow accessory dwelling units 

Accessory dwelling units can expand the available rental housing stock in areas zoned 
largely for single-family housing and can address the needs of families pulled between caring 
for their children and their aging parents, a demographic that has been growing rapidly in 
recent years. As a result of the recent recession, young adults have achieved financial 
independence at a slower rate than prior generations. While the number of Americans caring 
for both an aging parent and a child has increased only marginally, the costs associated with 
caring for multiple generations has increased significantly as a greater share of parents 
support their children beyond age 18.51 Accessory dwelling units offer one solution to this 
challenge by facilitating intergenerational living arrangements and allowing more seniors to 
age in place, something that nearly 90% of older Americans desire for themselves and their 
families. 52 In addressing the temporary needs of families that are stretched thin, accessory 
dwelling units can create a permanent increase in affordable housing stock. Cities like 
Portland and Santa Cruz had explicitly encouraged this action, while others like San Diego 
have called for changes to allow more such units. The State of California moved earlier this 
month to streamline state regulations to promote construction of accessory dwelling units. 

17 



7. Establish density bonuses 

Density bonuses encourage housing development and incentivize the addition of affordable 
housing units by granting projects in which the developer includes a certain number of 
affordable housing units the ability to constrnct a greater number of market rate units than 
would otherwise be allowed. Density bonuses are frequently tied to community goals of 
increased affordable housing and can be effective in driving larger quantities of units 
supplied through new constrnction. The State of California requires its local governments to 
grant a density bonus and concession or development incentive, if requested, for 
developments of five or more units including minimum portions of affordable housing or for 
senior housing. 

8. Employ inclusionary zoning 

Inclusionary zoning requires or encourages the inclusion of affordable units in new 
residential development projects. As of 2014, such policies had been implemented by nearly 
500 local jurisdictions in 27 states and the District of Columbia.53 Not only have such 
policies expanded the availability of affordable housing while allowing for new development 
that otherwise might have been locally opposed, they have also been shown to improve 
educational outcomes for low-income children gaining access to higher-performing 
schools.54 

As the Lincoln Institute of Land Policy has noted, inclusionary zoning policies require 
upfront commitment to long-term affordability, and perfonn best when both producing and 
preserving affordable housing. 55 While enforcement is a frequently cited obstacle to 
successful inclusionary housing requirements, Massachusetts' Chapter 40B provisions 
enables the local Zoning Boards of Appeals to approve affordable housing developments 
under flexible rnles if at least 20-25% of the units have long-term affordability resh·ictions . 
This flexibility reduces barriers created by local approval processes and zoning. 56 

9. Establish development tax or value capture incentives 

Tax incentives for developers who construct affordable housing offer another avenue to 
incentivize development; such incentives have been demonstrated to spur development, and 
have recently been adopted in Seattle and New York City. The Seattle Multifamily Tax 
Exemption program, which was modified and renewed in 2015, provides property owners 
and developers a tax exemption on new multifamily buildings that set aside 20-25% of the 
homes as income- and rent-restricted for 12 years; currently approximately 130 properties in 
Seattle are participating in the program and an additional 90 are expected to begin leasing 
MFTE units between 2016 and 2018. Adopted in 2015, The New York 420-c Tax Incentive 
program provides complete or partial exemption from real estate taxes for low-income 
housing up to a maximum of 60 years. 

18 



10. Use property tax abatements 

Like tax incentives, property tax abatements or exemptions can encourage the construction of 
affordable housing and spur development more generally, including by providing abatements 
to affordable housing production during the development phase. In 1985, Oregon adopted an 
approach to provide property tax abatements to properties in which units will be exclusively 
available to eligible low-income individuals or to vacant land intended to be developed as 
low-income housing. Philadelphia offers a tax abatement from real estate tax for up to 30 
months during the construction of residential housing. 57 

19 



1 Desmond, Matthew. Evicted: Poverty and Profit in the American City. 2016. 

2 Ganong, Peter, and Shoag, Daniel. "Why Has Regional Income Convergence in the U.S. Declined?" Harvard 
University, January 2015. 

3 Glaeser, Edward, Gyourko, Joseph, and Saks, Raven. "Why Have Housing Prices Gone Up?" National Bureau of 
Economic Research. Working Paper 11129, February 2015. 

4 Gyourko, Joseph, and Malloy, Raven. "Regulation and Housing Supply." National Bureau of Economic Research, 
Working Paper 20536. October 2014. 

5 Glaeser, Edward, and Ward, B1yce. "The Causes and Consequences ofLand Use Regulation : Evidence from 
Greater Boston." Journal of Urban Economics, 9 July 2008. 

6 Glaeser, Edward, Gyourko, Joseph, and Saks, Raven. "Manhattan So Expensive? Regulation and the Rise in House 
Prices." National Bureau of Economic Research. Working Paper 10124, November 2003. 

7 Mo1Tow, Greg. "The Homeowner Revolution: Democracy, Land Use and the Los Angeles Slow-Growth 
Movement. 1965-1992." UCLA Electronic Theses and Dissertations, 2013 . 

8 "California's High Housing Costs Causes and Consequences." Legislative Analyst's Office, March 17 2015. 

9 Morrow, Greg. "The Homeowner Revolution: Democracy. Land Use and the Los Angeles Slow-Growth 
Movement. 1965-1992." UCLA Electronic Theses and Dissertations (2013). 

1° Clark, Patrick. "The Affordable-Housing Crisis Moves Inland." Bloomberg, 15 Apr. 2016. 

11 "Worst Case Housing Needs 2015 Report to Congress." U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development I 
Office of Policy Development and Research, April 2015. 

12 "America 's Rental Housing - Evolving Markets and Needs." Joint Center for Housing Studies of Harvard 
University, 2013 . 

13 "California's High Housing Costs Causes and Consequences." Legislative Analyst's Office, March 17 2015. 

14 Ibid. 

15 Tlkeda, Sanford, and Washington, Emily. "How Land-Use Regulation Unde1mines Affordable Housing." 
Mercatus Center George Mason University, November 2015. 

16 Glaeser, Edward, and Gyourko, Joseph. "The Impact of Zoning on Housing Affordability ." National Bureau of 
Economic Research. Working Paper 8835, March 2002. 

17 "The State of the Nation ' s Housing ." Joint Center for Housing Studies of Harvard University, 2016. 

18 "Projecting Trends in Severely Cost-Burdened Renters : 2015-2025 ." Enterprise Community Partners Inc and Joint 
Center for Housing Studies of Harvard University, 21 September 2015. 

19 "Residential Vacancies and Homeownership in the Second Quarter 2016." U.S. Census Bureau. U.S. Department 
of Commerce. 28 July, 2016. 

20 Ganong, Peter, and Shoag, Daniel. "Why Has Regional Income Convergence in the U.S. Declined?" Harvard 
University, Janua1y 2015. 

21 Hsieh, Chang-Tai, and Moretti, Enrico. "Why Do Cities Matter? Local Growth and Aggregate Growth." 2015 . 

20 



22 Man gin, John. "The New Exclusionary Zoning." Stanford Law & Policy Review, Volume 25, Janua1y 2014. 

23 Kamer, Alex, and Benner, Chris. "Job Growth. Housing Affordability. and Commuting in the Bay Area ." Bay 
Area Regional Prosperity Housing Working Group, 29 May 2016. 

24 Hoehner, Christine, Barlow, Carolyn, Allen, Peg, and Schootman, Mario. "Commuting Distance. 
Cardiorespiratory Fitness, and Metabolic Risk. " The American Journal of Preventive Medicine 42.6 (2012). 

25 "Commuting and Personal Well -Being." Office ofNational Statistics, 12 February 2014. 

26 "Wellbeing Lower Among Workers With Long Commutes." Gallup, 13 August 20 I 0. 

27 Do, Kiet. "Cops Living in RV 's Outside San Jose Police Department" CBS SF Bay Area. 

28 "By Right Development: Does it work for you?" Office of Community Revitalization Fai1fax County, Virginia. 
N.d. 

29 Shwartz, Heather. "Housing Policy is School Policy: Economically Integrative Housing Promotes Academic 
Success in Montgomery County. Maryland." The Century Foundation, 2010. 

30 Lens, Miachel, and Monkkonen, Paavo. "Do Strict Land Use Regulations Make Metropolitan Areas more 
Segregated by Income?" Lewis Center. UCLA Institute of Transportation Studies, 2015. 

31 Kendig, Lane. "Practice By-Right Zoning." Zoning Practice. April 2016. 

32 "Bending the Cost Curve - Solutions to Expand the Supply of Affordable Rentals ." Urban Land Institute 
Te1williger Center for Housing: 24. 2014. 

33 "Zoning Decisions." Smart Growth/Smart Energy Toolkit. Commonwealth of Massachusetts, N.d. 

34 Lens, Michael. "Do Strict Land Use Regulations Make Metropolitan Areas More Segregated by Income?" Taylor 
& Francis Online. N.d., 28 Dec. 2015. 

35 "Vacant and Abandoned Properties: Turning Liabilities into Assets ." Office of Policy Development and Research 
(PD&R) U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, 2014. 

36 Whitaker, Stephan, and Fitzpatrick TV, Thomas J. "Deconstructing Distressed-Property Spillovers: The Effects of 
Vacant, Tax-Delinquent, and Foreclosed Properties in Housing Submarkets." Journal of Housing Economics 22.2 
(2013). 

37 Cui, Lin. "Foreclosure, Vacancy and Crime." Journal of Economics, 20 July 2015. 

38 "Vacant Land Management in Philadelphia: The Costs of the CmTent System and the Benefits of Reform," 
Econsult Corporation, Penn Institute for Urban Research, and May 8 Consulting: 9, 11 . November 20 I 0. 

39 Garber, Roberta, Kim, Jung, Sullivan, Keny, and Dowell, Eben. "$60 Million and Counting: The Cost of Vacant 
and Abandoned Properties to Eight Ohio Cities." Community Research Partners, 3-3. 2010. 

40 Sang Lee, Yun, Te1nnova, Patrick, and lmmergluck, Dan. "New Data on Local Vacant Property Registration 
Ordinances," Cityscape: A Journal of Policy Development and Research 15:2, 259-66. 2013. 

41 ' 'Building an Affordable Future: The Promise ofa New York City Land Bank." Office of the New York City 
Comptroller, February 2016. 

42 "78(R) HB 2801 Bill Analysis." Texas Legislature Online, 21 May 2003. 

21 



43 "Housing/Community Services Depa1iment. 11 City of Dallas, N.d .. 

44 "Expedite Program for Affordable/in-Fill Housing & Sustainable Buildings." City of San Diego, 2015. 

45 "Bending the Cost Curve - Solutions to Expand the Supply of Affordable Rentals." Urban Land Institute 
Terwilliger Center for Housing: 19. 2014. 

46 "Parking." Association of Bay Area Governments, N.d. 

47 "Parking Review: Report to Council PLUS Committee." City of Seattle. 13 April 2015. 

48 "Chapter 40 R. " Housing and Economic Development. Massachusetts Housing and Urban Development, N.d. 

49 Olivo, Antonio. "Fairfax Supervisors Give Final Approval for Higher-density Zoning Rules ." The Washington 
Post, 22 June 2016. 

5° Kelleher, Susan. "Seattle's micro-housing boom offers an affordable alternative." Seattle Times. 

51 Parker, Kim, and Patten, Eileen. "The Sandwich Generation." Pew Research Center. Social & Demographic 
Trends, 30 January 2013. 

52 "Livable Communities Baby Boomer Facts and Figures." American Association of Retired Persons, April 2014. 

53 Hickey, Robert, Lisa Stmievant, and Emily Thaden. "Achieving Lasting Affordability through Tnclusionary 
Housing." Lincoln Institute of Land Policy, 2014. 

54 Shwartz, Heather. "Housing Policy is School Policy: Economically Integrative Housing Promotes Academic 
Success in Montgomery County. Maryland." The Century Foundation, 2010. 

55Ibid. 

56 "Chapter 40B Planning." Massachusetts Executive Office of Housing and Economic Development, N.d. 

57 "Abatements." Office of Property Assessment. City of Philadelphia, N.d. 

22 



Commission Review #16053 
(Township Board} 
October 20, 2016 

APPLICANT: Township Board 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, Ml 48864 

STATUS OF APPLICANT: Purchaser 

REQUEST: Section 61 review of location, character and extent of a parcel 
proposed for purchase by the Township 

LOCATION: East of Carlton Street and northwest of Lake Drive in Section 11 

AREA OF SUBJECT SITE: Approximately 2.251 acres 

CURRENT ZONING: RB (Single Family-High Density) 

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped 

EXISTING LAND USES 
IN AREA: North: Single Family Residential 

South: Undeveloped 
East: Undeveloped 
West: Single Family Residential and Undeveloped 

CURRENT ZONING 
IN AREA: North: RB (Single Family-High Density) 

South: RR (Rural Residential) 
East: RR (Rural Residential) 
West: RB (Single Family-High Density) 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
DESIGNATION: Residential 1.25-3.5 DU/A 

FUTURE LAND USES 
IN SURROUNDING AREA: North: Residential 1.25 - 3.5 du/a 

South: Institutional 
East: Institutional 
West: Residential 1.25 - 3.5 du/a and Parks 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning Commission 

Gail Oranchak, AICP 

October 20, 2016 

Commission Review #16053 (Township Board), a Section 61 review of 
character, location, and extent for a 2.251 acre Land Preservation purchase 
located east of Carlton Street and northwest of Lake Drive 

The Land Preservation Board recommended the purchase of approximately 2.251 acres of land 
(Tax ID #11-177-008) located east of Carlton Street, north of Lake Drive in Section 11. The site 
is zoned RB (Single Family-High Density). The Township Board referred this case to the 
Planning Commission to review the location, character and extent of the parcel. 

Section 61 (MCL 125.3861) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act states "A street; square, 
park, playground, public way, ground, or other open space; or public building or other structure 
shall not be constructed or authorized for construction in an area covered by a municipal master 
plan unless the location, character, and extent of the street, public way, open space, structure, 
or utility have been submitted to the planning commission by the legislative body." 

Master Plan 

The 2005 Future Land Use Map designates the site in Residential 1.25-3.5 DU/A category 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

Lake 
Lansing 

~---1 L!) RESIDENTIAL 1.25-3.5DU/A 

/,.<e------1 g RESIDENTLI\LS.0-14.0 DU/A 

,,:Z..------1 W PARK 

.,,,;,L-------1 LJWATER 

/?'--------, D INSTITUTIONAL 



CR #16053 (Township Board) 
Planning Commission (10/24/16) 
Page 2 

Zoning 

The site is zoned RB (Single Family-High Density) residential. 

Physical Features 

Lake 
Lansing 

ZONING MAP 

The site is undeveloped. Vegetation consists of trees and shrubs around the perimeter of the site 
and with predominantly wetland associated plants in the interior. A review of the Flood Insurance 
Rate Map (FIRM) revealed areas of floodplain are not present on the site. 

Wetlands 

The Township Wetland Map shows Wetland #11-1 B may cover the entire subject site although a 
wetland delineation has not been done. The wetland is described as 2. 75 acres consisting of 
emergent, scrub-shrub, and forested wetland areas. 



CR #16053 (Township Board) 
Planning Commission (10/24/16) 
Page 3 

Soils 

The following predominant soil types impact development of the subject site: 

SOIL ASSOCIATION SEVERE LIMITATIONS 
KbA (Kibbie) Wetness 
Na (Napoleon) Subsides, Ponding, Low Strength 

Source: Soil Survey of Ingham County, Michigan. 1992. 

Greenspace Plan 

Lake 
Lansing 

SOILS MAP 

The Township Greenspace Map does not show a special designation for the site itself however 
Lake Drive is designated as a scenic road and a scenic road corridor extends the length of the 
road. An "on-road" pathway is present along Lake Drive. Township-owned land east of Lake 
Drive is identified as a Primary Conservation Corridor. 

Lake 
Lansing 

GREENSPACE MAP 



CR #16053 (Township Board) 
Planning Commission (10/24/16) 
Page4 

Public Utilities 

Public water and sewer lines are available to serve the site although service has not been 
extended into the property. 

Streets & Traffic 

Lake Drive is classified as a local collector road and Carlton Street is a local street. 

Staff Analysis 

The Township Board referred the Land Preservation purchase of the 2.251 acre site to the 
Planning Commission to review its location, character and extent in relation to the Master Plan. 
The location refers to the site's placement in the Township and its surroundings; its location is 
near the eastern shore of Lake Lansing, between Carlton Street and Lake Drive and near the 
Meridian Township owned Lake Lansing Marsh located west of Carlton Street. The character 
includes the project's distinguishing features such as wooded areas and the presence of 
wetlands and wetland vegetation. The extent refers to the dimensions of the site-an 
approximate 2.251 acre irregularly shaped parcel with approximately 688 feet of frontage along 
Lake Drive and 371 feet of frontage along Carlton Street 

The purchase is consistent with Goal 2 of the 2005 Master Plan to Preserve Open Space and 
Natural Areas through purchase. Under Township ownership, management of invasive species 
such as phragmites will be possible. 

Planning Commission Options 

The Planning Commission may approve or deny the comm1ss1on review. The legal notice 
indicated the Planning Commission may make a decision the same night as the public hearing. A 
resolution to approve has been provided for the Commission's consideration. 

Attachments 
1. Resolution to Approve 
2. Application materials 
3. Township Board minutes from September 20, 2016 

G:\PLANNING\ \CR\CR 16053\CR 16053 pc 1.doc 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE Commission Review #16053 
Township Board 

Land Preservation Purchase 
Approx. 2.251 acres, W. of Lake Dr., E of Carlton 

RESOLUTION 

At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 24th 
day of October 2016, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 

PRESENT: ------------------------------

ABSENT: 

The following resolution was offered by Commissioner --------- and 
supported by Commissioner---------

WHEREAS, Section 61 (MCL 125.3861) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act states, 
"A street; square, park, playground, public way, ground, or other open space; or public building 
or other structure shall not be constructed or authorized for construction in an area covered by a 
municipal master plan unless the location, character, and extent of the street, public way, open 
space, structure, or utility have been submitted to the planning commission by the legislative 
body."; and 

WHEREAS, the Land Preservation Advisory Board recommended the purchase of an 
approximate 2.251 acre parcel of land located west of Lake Drive and east of Carlton Street in 
Section 11 of the Township; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board referred the case to the Planning Commission to 
review the location, character and extent of the parcel; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held the public hearing for Commission Review 
#16053 on October 24, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission discussed the Commission Review during the 
October 24, 2016 meeting and reviewed the staff materials forwarded under cover 
memorandum dated October 20, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the site is valuable for its environmental properties including wetlands and 
its proximity to Lake Lansing and nearby marshes; and 

WHEREAS, purchase of the undeveloped site is consistent with Goal Number 2 of the 
2005 Master Plan to 'Preserve Open Space and Natural Areas'; and 

WHEREAS, acquisition of the site using the Land Preservation millage is supported by 
Township Board policies to acquire land for open space. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN approves the location, character and extent of an 



Resolution to Approve 
CR #16053 (Township Board) 
Page 2 

approximate 2.251 acre parcel of land located west of Lake Drive and east of Carlton Street in 
Section 11 of the Township. 

ADOPTED: YEAS: -------------------------

NAYS: --------------------------

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 
true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission on the 24th day of October 2016. 

John Scott-Craig, Chair 
Meridian Township Planning Commission 

G:\PLANNING\CR\2016\CR 16053\CR 16053 res approve.doc 



A 

B. 

C. 

D. 

\.;,1ARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, Ml 48864 
PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095 

COMMISSION REVIEW: 
AMENDMENT TO MASTER PLAN APPLICATION 
(Municipal Planning Act, MCL 125.31, Section 9) 

Applicant Charter Township of Meridian 
Address of Applicant _5_1~5_1_M_a_rs~h~R_o_a_d ____________________ _ 

Okemos Ml 48864 
Telephone: Work _5"-1'-'7--8-=-5"--'3'--4-'-6-=-1'-'0'-------- Home -'n=/=a __________ _ 

Fax 517-853-4099 Email greenway@meridian.mi.us 

Jurisdiction having authority (if different than applicant) -~n~/a _____________ _ 
Address ---------------------------------Te I e phone Fax Email address _______ _ 
Please provide the name of the board, commission or body having jurisdiction for the authorization of financing of 
the public way, ground, space, building, structure or utility. 

Applicant's Representative, Architect, Engineer or Planner responsible for request: 
Name I Contact Person __ J_a_n_e_G~r-'-e~en~w_a_y~--------------------
Address same as above 
Telephone: Work 517-853-4610 Home ____________ _ 

Fax-------------- Email ~g=r-=e=enc..c..;w:...:.;a::.:.Jy'-"@=m~e'-'rd=ia=n=.m~i.u=s'----

Site location/address: North of Lake Drive east of Carlton 

Zoning Classification(s)-"-'R=B ________________________ _ 
Parcel number(s) 33-02-02-11-177-008 

E. I (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian's Boards and/or 
Commissions, Township staff member(s) and the Township's representatives or experts the right to enter 
onto the above described property ( or as described in the attached information) in my ( our) absence for 
the purpose of gathering information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs. 

x Yes D No (Please check one)-Permission granted with Land Preservation Application 

By the signature(s) attached hereto, I (we) certify that the information provided within this application and 
accompanying documentation is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate. 

Signature of Applicant 

Jane L. Greenway 
Type/Print Name 

Fee:----------

Date application 
submitted: -----

9-9-16 
Date 

Received by/Date:~~ t,_,J 'J/u fit 

Date application deemed 
complete: ____ _ 

Date of last day for 
decision: ----



This form should be\11cluded with the COMMISSION REVIL.J APPLICATION. 
Explain your position on the lines below, and attach supporting information. 

REASONS FOR MODIFYING THE MASTER PLAN 

Please explain your request to modify the Township's Master Plan for construction or 
authorization of a street, public utility, park, public way, ground, open space or other public 
building or structure on the following lines: 

Supports greenspace plan and Township Goals 1.1 b, 1.1.2d, 1.1.2e 

The location, character and extent of your request will be evaluated in accordance with the 
responses you provide to Questions 1-12. 

1. How will the request if approved be consistent with current development trends in the 
Township? 
Supports greenspace plan; preserves open space in northern portion of the Township 

2. How does the request further the Township Master Plan goals to: 
• Preserve and strengthen existing and future residential neighborhoods--XX 
• Preserve open space and natural areas 
• Maintain the viability of Meridian Township businesses 
• Maintain and expand a diverse park system 
• Maintain essential public services 
• Provide and support an efficient, safe and environmentally sensitive multi-modal 

transportation system 
• Maintain and enhance the Township's growth management program 

This acquisition will preserve the area in perpetuity. Providing/protecting open space is 

essential for protecting the natural features of our community. The land will be protected 

from development, but at the same time provide an attraction for planned growth in the 

future. 



' . 

3. Is the request supported 'uy surveys or studies of the present cori\ ... dons and future needs of 
the Township? If yes, please attach a copy of the survey and/or study. 

Supports greenspace plans and Township Goals 1.1 b, 1.1.2d, 1.1.2e 

4. How does the request promote the health, safety and general welfare of the Township 
public? 

See above 

5. How does the request promote the best use of time, effort and resources in the development 
of the Township? 
Land preservation parcels are purchased through the use of the Land Preservation Millage Funds. 

6. How does the request promote wise and efficient expenditures of Township Public funds? 
See above 

7. How does the request impact traffic in the Township? 
n/a 

8. How does the request impact the public's safety from fire and other dangers in the 
Township? 
n/a 

9. How does the request impact the light and air in the Township? 
Natural open space is a benefit to air quality ________________ _ 

10. How does the request impact the population distribution in the Township? 
n/a 

11. How does the request promote good public design and arrangement in the Township? 
See#3 

12. How does the request impact public utilities and other public services in the Township? 
It will impact our land management program, as the property has phragmites and other invasive 

species that need to be managed. 



{ ( 

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP 

TO: 

FROM: 

Township Board 

~ ~ner~ P 
Director of Parks and Recreation 

Ja Greenway, LLA 
Senior Parks and Land Man ement Coordinator 

DATE: September 15, 2016 

RE: · Land Preservation Acquisition Recommendation 
The Edward Felton Tank Revocable Trust, 2.51 acres 
(Near Carlton and Lake Drive); Parcel #33-02-02-11-177-008 

The Meridian Township Board passed a motion at their regular June 7, 2016 meeting to 
approve acceptance of the Edward Felton Tank Revocable Trust into the Land Preservation 
Program. The next step in the process is for the Township Board to pass a motion to forward 
the property to the Planning Commission for review and amendment to master plan application 
(Municipal Planning Act, MCL 125.31 , Section 9). 

Property Location 
West of Carlton Road and north of Lake Drive. 

Natural Features Description 
The property is designated as 100% wetland and has some invasive species including 
phragmites. It provides buffer for the Lake Lansing watershed and offers opportunities for 
invasive species management and habitat improvement. 

Donation Agreement 
A draft donation agreement has been developed for the acquisition to move forward the 
process. Closing costs, transfer Taxes and Title Insurance to be paid by the seller. 

Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
Although the LPAB has researched the area, the ordinance requires an environmental 
assessment of the recommended parcel. Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr and Huber is in the 
process of developing an assessment. The environmental site assessment will be reviewed 
before completing the purchase. 

The following motion is proposed: 
MOVE THAT THE MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP BOARD FORWARD THE PROPOSED 
DONATION OF THE EDWARD FELTON TANK REVOCABLE TRUST, 2.51 ACRES, 
PARCEL #33-02-02-11-177-008 TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION FOR SECTION 61 
REVIEW FOR APPROVAL AS TO THEIR LOCATION, CHARACTER AND EXTENT AS 
A PUBLIC GROUND OR OPEN SPACE. 



I 

I 
! 

... J 

M®lr0©1D@Hll U©'Wlri)~~'illl[Q) lfffilrfl(Q~ fPJir®~®~V~\tU @lli) 
ApriV 13, 2011 



MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP; Mi 
The Edward Felton Tank Revocable Trust 
Parcel #33-02-02-11-177-008, 2.51 acres 

.-....... 

N 

A 
350 175 0 350 Feet 

c _:__m• c_J_ c__ ____ -~-- ~--_=:J 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 20, 2016 REGULAR MEETING *APPROVED* 

Treasurer Brixie moved that the communications be received and placed on file, and any 
coll1lllunications not already assigned for disposition be referred to the Township Manager 
or Supervisor for follow-up. Seconded by Trustee Styka. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer 
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus 

NAYS: None 
Motion carried 6-0. 

B. Minutes 
Treasurer Brixie moved to approve and ratify the minutes of the September 6, 2016 Regular 
Meeting as submitted. Seconded by Trustee Styka. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer 
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus 

NAYS: None 
Motion carried 6-0. 

C. Bills 
Treasurer Brixie moved that the Township Board approve the Manager's Bills as follows: 

Common Cash $ 129,882.93 
Public Works $ 88,241.34 
Trust & Agency $ 2,469,316.33 

Total Checks $ 2,687,440.60 
Credit Card Transactions $ 7,334.51 

Total Purchases $ 2,694,775.11 

ACH Payments $ 396,133.86 

Seconded by Trustee Styka. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer 
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus 

NAYS: None 
Motion carried 6-0. 

[Bill list in Official Minute Book] 

D. 2017 Budget Public Hearing Date-September 29, 2016 
Treasurer Brixie moved that a public hearing be held at 6:00 P.M. in the Town Hall Room 
on September 29, 2016 for the purpose of taking comments regarding the 2017 Charter 
Township of Meridian Recommended Budget. Seconded by Trustee Styka. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer 
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus 

NAYS: None 
Motion carried 6-0. 

E. Land Preservation Acquisition Recommendation-Tank Trust 
Treasurer Brixie moved the Meridian Township Board forward the proposed donation of 
the Edward Felton Tank Revocable Trust, 2.51 acres (parcel #33-02-02-11-177-008), to 
the Planning Commission for Section 61Review for approval as to the location, character 
and extent as a public ground or open space. Seconded by Trustee Styka. 

PAGE6 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, SEPTEMBER 20, 2016 REGULAR MEETING *APPROVED* 

Board discussion: 
• Subject parcel is east of Carlton Road 
• Property is 100 % wetland and is already protected 
• Subject parcel impacts Lake Lansing and other Township preserves through its water 

connection 
• Opportunity to improve fish habitat through use of this site 
• Property is in the vicinity of the Lake Lansing Watershed 
• Allowing the property to be part of the Land Management Program will assist in the 

creation of a healthy ecosystem in the area through invasive species control 
• Land is a 100 % donation 
• Township ordinance requires a Phase I environmental assessment 
• Cost of the assessment is $2,000 
• Assessment would uncover any contamination prior to the Township taking ownership of 

the property 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer 
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus 

NAYS: None 
Motion carried 6-0. 

F. Ratification of Police Officer Appointments 
Treasurer Brixie moved to ratify the appointment of Tori Klewicki-McNutt and Louidore 
Jr. Brutus to the position of Police Officer contingent upon successful completion of those 
items stipulated in their conditional offers of employment. Seconded by Trustee Styka. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer 
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus 

NAYS: None 
Motion carried 6-0. 

G. Approval to Change Polling Location 
Treasurer Brixie moved to adopt the resolution "Change Location of Precinct #20 Polling 
Place in Meridian Township." Seconded by Trustee Styka. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Supervisor LeGoff, Treasurer 
Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus 

NAYS: None 
Motion carried 6-0. 

10. QUESTIONS FOR THE ATTORNEY (None) 

11. HEARINGS (None) 

12. ACTION ITEMS 
Supervisor LeGoff opened Public Remarks. 

Leonard Provencher, 5824 Buena Parkway, Haslett, voiced his continued concern relative to 
Rezoning #16030, noting the property is compliant with its current zoning. He indicated once the 
rezoning is approved and the owner requests a property split, both parcels will be non-compliant 
regarding the required setbacks for the two buildings. Mr. Provencher believed the process to be 
"backwards." 

Supervisor LeGoff closed Public Remarks. 

A. Rezoning #16030 (Maniaci) 3690 Hulett Road RR (Rural Residential) to RAA (Single Family-Low 
Density) Introduction 

PAGE7 



Commission Review #16063 
(Township Board) 
October 20, 2016 

APPLICANT: Township Board 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, Ml 48864 

STATUS OF APPLICANT: Purchaser 

REQUEST: Section 61 review of location, character and extent of a parcel 
proposed for purchase by the Township 

LOCATION: 2849 Mt. Hope Road 

AREA OF SUBJECT SITE: Approximately 13.25 acres 

CURRENT ZONING: RR (Rural Residential) and RC (Multiple Family-14 DU/A) 

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped 

EXISTING LAND USES 
IN AREA: North: Mt. Hope Road 

South: CSX Railroad 

CURRENT ZONING 

East: Eastgate subdivision 
West: Berrytree apartments 

IN AREA: North: RR (Rural Residential) 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

South: RAAA (Single Family-Low Density) 
East: RR (Rural Residential) 
West: RC (Multiple Family-14 DU/A) 

DESIGNATION: Residential 1.25-3.5 DU/A 

FUTURE LAND USES 
IN SURROUNDING AREA: North: Residential 1.25 - 3.5 du/a 

South: Residential 1.25 - 3.5 du/a 
East: Residential 1.25 - 3.5 du/a 
West: Residential 8.0 - 14 du/a 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning Commission 

' Gail Oranchak, AICP 

October 20, 2016 

Commission Review #16063 (Township Board), a Section 61 review of 
character, location and extent for a 13.25 acre land preservation purchase 

The Land Preservation Board recommended the purchase of 2849 Mt. Hope Road consisting of 
three parcels (Tax ID #29-126-001, 29-129-001, 29-104-002) totaling approximately 13.25 
acres of land located south of Mt. Hope Road, east of Hagadorn Road, west of the Eastgate 
subdivision and north of the CSX Railroad. The site is zoned RR (Rural Residential) and RC 
(Multiple Family-14 dwelling units per acre). The Township Board referred this case to the 
Planning Commission to review the location, character and extent of the parcel. 

Section 61 (MCL 125.3861) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act states "A street; square, 
park, playground, public way, ground, or other open space; or public building or other structure 
shall not be constructed or authorized for construction in an area covered by a municipal master 
plan unless the location, character, and extent of the street, public way, open space, structure, 
or utility have been submitted to the planning commission by the legislative body." 

Master Plan 

The 2005 Future Land Use Map designates the site in the Residential 1.25-3.5 DU/A and 
Residential 8.0-14.0 DU/A categories. 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

······~···········;/ .,., ..... • • • • • ·~ ••••••••••• 0/ ( . • • • •• 
• • • • • • c / I, .......... ,~..... . .. . . . . . ·/i . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 
• • • • • X • • • • • • • • • • ~ • • • • • • • • 

ount ope Rd 

c=) RESIDEU TIAL 1.25-3 5 DU/A 

~ RES10EUTIAL80-14.0 DU/A 

lffloFF/CE 



CR #16063 (Township Board) 
Planning Commission (10/20/16) 
Page 2 

Zoning 

The site is zoned RR (Rural Residential) and RC (Multiple Family-14 units per acre) . 

ZONING MAP 

E8E8E8 
RD 

Physical Features 

The site is undeveloped. Wooded areas are located around the perimeter of the site while the 
interior consists of grasses and shrubs. The Herron Creek drain runs north and south through the 
site along its west boundary. The site has frontage on Mt. Hope Road and Del Mar Drive in the 
Eastgate subdivision. 

Floodplain 

The Floodplain Map shows floodway and floodplain areas associated with the Herron Creek drain . 

l 

Legend 

EZ::) FLOODWAY 

FLOOD PL.Alll (AE) 

FLOODPLAIN MAP 



CR #16063 (Township Board) 
Planning Commission (10/20/16) 
Page 3 

Wetlands 

The Township Wetland Map shows Wetland #29-1 covers the portion of site associated with the 
Herron Creek drain. Within Section 29, Wetland #29-1 represents a 131 .3 acre emergent and 
scrub-shrub wetland. 

WETLAND MAP 

"C 

E EBEB 

Mount Ho e 

Soils 

SOILS MAP 



CR #16063 (Township Board) 
Planning Commission (10/20/16) 
Page 4 

The following predominant soil types impact development of the subject site: 

SOIL ASSOCIATION SEVERE LIMITATIONS 
Hn (Houghton) Subsides, Ponding, Low strength 
KbA (Kibbie) Wetness 
MeD2 (Marlette) Slope 
SpC (Spinks) Slope 
UeB (Urban Land) None 

Source: Soil Survey of Ingham County, Michigan. 1992. 

Greenspace Plan 

The Township Greenspace Map shows a large area of the site associated with the Herron Creek 
drain designated as a Primary Conservation Corridor (PCC). In this location, the PCC is 
considered a "fragile link". 

Public Utilities 

BEEEE 

Legend 

c:::::J fragile links 

fZ.:a p11or1ty corr1dor 

GREENSPACE MAP 

Public water and sewer lines are available to serve the site although service has not been 
extended into the property. 

Streets & Traffic 

Mount Hope Road, a minor arterial , is the northern boundary of the site, the frontage measures 
approximately 300 feet. The Del Mar Drive right-of-way, a local street in the Eastgate subdivision, 
ends at the site. The right-of-way width is approximately 60 feet. 



CR #16063 (Township Board) 
Planning Commission (10/20/16) 
Page 5 

Staff Analysis 

The Township Board referred the Land Preservation purchase of the 13.25 acre site to the 
Planning Commission to review its location, character and extent in relation to the Master Plan. 
The location refers to the site's placement in the Township and its surroundings. Its location is 
on the south side of Mt. Hope Road east of the Berrytree apartments, west of the Eastgate 
subdivision and north of the CSX railroad. The character includes the project's distinguishing 
features such as extensive areas of floodplain and wetlands associated with the Herron Creek 
drain. The extent refers to the dimensions of the site-an approximate 13.2 acre irregularly 
shaped parcel with approximately 300 feet of frontage on Mt. Hope Road. 

The purchase is consistent with Goal 2 of the 2005 Master Plan to Preserve Open Space and 
Natural Areas through purchase. Herron Creek runs through the property making it 
environmentally desirable. Under Township ownership, management of invasive species such 
as phragmites will be possible. 

Planning Commission Options 

The Planning Commission may approve or deny the comm1ss1on review. The legal notice 
indicated the Planning Commission may make a decision the same night as the public hearing. A 
resolution to approve has been provided for the Commission's consideration. 

Attachments 
1. Resolution to Approve 
2. Application materials 
3. Township Board minutes from October 

G:\PLANNING\CR\2016\CR 16063\CR 16063 pc 1.doc 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE 

RESOLUTION 

Commission Review #16063 
Township Board 

Land Preservation Purchase 
Approx. 13.25 acres, 2849 Mt. Hope 

At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 24th 
day of October 2016, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 

PRESENT: ------------------------------

ABSENT: 

The following resolution was offered by Commissioner _________ and 
supported by Commissioner---------

WHEREAS, Section 61 (MCL 125.3861) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act states, 
"A street; square, park, playground, public way, ground, or other open space; or public building 
or other structure shall not be constructed or authorized for construction in an area covered by a 
municipal master plan unless the location, character, and extent of the street, public way, open 
space, structure, or utility have been submitted to the planning commission by the legislative 
body."; and 

WHEREAS, the Land Preservation Advisory Board recommended the purchase of an 
approximate 13.25 acre parcel of land located on the south side of Mt. Hope Road, west of the 
Eastgate subdivision, east of Berrytree apartments, and north of the CSX railroad in Section 29 
of the Township; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board referred the case to the Planning Commission to 
review the location, character and extent of the parcel; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held the public hearing for Commission Review 
#16063 on October 24, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission discussed the Commission Review during the 
October 24, 2016 meeting and reviewed the staff materials forwarded under cover 
memorandum dated October 20, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the site is valuable for its environmental properties including floodplain and 
wetlands associated with the Herron Creek Drain and its designation as a Priority Conservation 
Corridor with "fragile link" on the Greenspace Plan Map; and 

WHEREAS, purchase of the undeveloped site is consistent with Goal Number 2 of the 
2005 Master Plan to 'Preserve Open Space and Natural Areas'; and 

WHEREAS, acquisition of the site using the Land Preservation millage is supported by 
Township Board policies to acquire land for open space. 



Resolution to Approve 
CR #16063 (Township Board) 
Page 2 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN approves the location, character and extent of 2849 Mt. 
Hope road, consisting of three parcels totaling 13.25 acres located on the south side of Mt. Hope 
Road, east of Berrytree apartments, west of Eastgate subdivision and north of the CSX railroad in 
Section 29 of the Township. 

ADOPTED: YEAS: -------------------------

NAYS: -------------------------

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 
true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission on the 24th day of October 2016. 

John Scott-Craig, Chair 
Meridian Township Planning Commission 

G:\PLANNING\CR\2016\CR 16063\cr 16063 res approve.doc 



A. 

\;,,1ARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, Ml 48864 
PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095 

COMMISSION REVIEW: 
AMENDMENT TO MASTER PLAN APPLICATION 
(Municipal Planning Act, MCL 125.31, Section 9) 

Applicant Charter Township of Meridian 
Address of Applicant ---'5=--1'-"5C.....:1-'M=arc..=s..:....:h_:_R....:.co:c...:a=d"---------------------­

Okemos Ml 48864 
Telephone: Work _5~1~7--8~5_3_-4_6_1_.:0 _______ Home -'n_/_a __________ _ 

Fax 517-853-4099 Email greenway@meridian.mi.us 

B. Jurisdiction having authority (if different than applicant) __ n_/a _____________ _ 
Address ---------------------------------Te I e phone Fax Email address _______ _ 
Please provide the name of the board, commission or body having jurisdiction for the authorization of financing of 
the public way, ground, space, building, structure or utility. 

C. Applicant's Representative, Architect, Engineer or Planner responsible for request: 
Name/ Contact Person Jane Greenway ------~--------------------
Address same as above 
Telephone: Work 517-853-4610 Home ____________ _ 

Fax Email greenway@merdian.mi.us 

D. Site location/address: 2849 Mount Hope Road, (east of Hagadorn, north of Mount Hope) 

Zoning Classification(s)---'-'R~R~------------------------­
Parcel number(s) 33-02-02-29-126-001; 33-02-02-29-129-001; 33-02-02-29-104-002 

E. I (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian's Boards and/or 
Commissions, Township staff member(s) and the Township's representatives or experts the right to enter 
onto the above described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for 
the purpose of gathering information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs. 

x Yes D No (Please check one)-Permission granted with Land Preservation Application 

By the signature(s) attached hereto, I (we) certify that the information provided within this application and 
accompanying documentation is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate. 

Signature of Applicant 

Jane L. Greenway 
Type/Print Name 

Fee: ----------

Date application 
submitted: -----

9-9-16 
Date 

Received by/Date: J/1./(<,J ;{;.-p/ ')JJ !JI 

Date application deemed 
complete: ____ _ 

Date of last day for 
decision: ----



/ 
This form should be\,,cluded with the COMMISSION REVli..J APPLICATION. 
Explain your position on the lines below, and attach supporting information. 

REASONS FOR MODIFYING THE MASTER PLAN 

Please explain your request to modify the Township's Master Plan for construction or 
authorization of a street, public utility, park, public way, ground, open space or other public 
building or structure on the following lines: 

Supports greenspace plan and Township Goals 1.1 b, 1.1.2d, 1.1.2e 

The location, character and extent of your request will be evaluated in accordance with the 
responses you provide to Questions 1-12. 

1. How will the request if approved be consistent with current development trends in the 
Township? 
Supports greenspace plan; preserves open space in northern portion of the Township 

2. How does the request further the Township Master Plan goals to: 
• Preserve and strengthen existing and future residential neighborhoods--XX 
• Preserve open space and natural areas 
• Maintain the viability of Meridian Township businesses 
• Maintain and expand a diverse park system 
• Maintain essential public services 
• Provide and support an efficient, safe and environmentally sensitive multi-modal 

transportation system 
• Maintain and enhance the Township's growth management program 

This acquisition will preserve the area in perpetuity. Providing/protecting open space is 

essential for protecting the natural features of our community. The land will be protected 

from development, but at the same time provide an attraction for planned growth in the 

future. 



3. Is the request supported l.,f surveys or studies of the present con1...dons and future needs of 
the Township? If yes, please attach a copy of the survey and/or study. 

Supports greenspace plans and Township Goals 1.1 b, 1.1.2d, 1.1.2e 

4. How does the request promote the health, safety and general welfare of the Township 
public? 

See above 

5. How does the request promote the best use of time, effort and resources in the development 
of the Township? 
Land preservation parcels are purchased through the use of the Land Preservation Millage Funds. 

6. How does the request promote wise and efficient expenditures of Township Public funds? 
See above 

7. How does the request impact traffic in the Township? 
n/a 

8. How does the request impact the public's safety from fire and other dangers in the 
Township? 
n/a 

9. How does the request impact the light and air in the Township? 
Natural open space is a benefit to air quality ________________ _ 

10. How does the request impact the population distribution in the Township? 
n/a 

11. How does the request promote good public design and arrangement in the Township? 
See#3 

12. How does the request impact public utilities and other public services in the Township? 
It will impact our land management program, as the property has phragmites and other invasive 

species that need to be managed. 



MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Township Board 

~l {(/l/v\J_. /1[1 Cl-1 J iVl,.v I ~ 
LuAnn Maisner, CPRP / ' 
Director of Parks and Recreation 

(\J'f__ l~U.-AJ~ 
Jar( Greenway, LLA 
Selarror Parks and Land Management Coordinator 

September 30, 2016 

Land Preservation Acquisition Recommendation 
Estate of Eileen D. Serafine Trust 
2849 Mount Hope Road; Parcels #33-02-02-29-126-001, 
33-02-02-29-129-001, and 33-02-02-29-104-002 

12C 

The Land Preservation Advisory Board is pleased to present the Estate of Eileen D. Serafine 
Trust property for Township acquisition. The land preservation acquisition was presented to the 
Board at its September 20, 2016 meeting and was discussed. The acquisition will also be 
forwarded to the Planning Commission for a Section 61 review. 

Property Location 
This property is a total of 13.25 +/- acres and is comprised of three parcels. It is located east of 
Hagadorn Road, south of Mt. Hope Road, and west of the Eastgate subdivision. The property is 
adjacent to the CSX railroad. 

Natural Features Description 
The topography of the property is generally rolling and is mostly open with small pockets of 
wooded areas. The Herron Creek runs through the entire length of the property and flows under 
the railroad to the south through a stone arch bridge. Approximately half of the property is 
designated as floodway/floodplain. Neighbors have reported wildlife sightings that include great 
blue heron; green heron; eastern bluebird; eastern kingbird; and field sparrow. Amphibians 
include gray tree frog; spring peeper; and western chorus frog. The monarch butterfly is often 
observed on the property as there are large quantities of common milkweed growing in the open 
upland sections. 

Meridian Greenspace Plan 
The property is located directly north of an existing land preserve, the Southwest Meridian 
Uplands (also known as "Sturk"). This linkage is indicated on the Meridian Greenspace Plan as 
a "fragile link" that needs to be protected. Herron Creek and its watershed is a valuable tributary 
of the Red Cedar River. 



Purchase Agreement 

Land Preservation Acquisition Recommendation 
Estate of Eileen D. Serafine Trust 

2849 Mount Hope Road; 
Parcels #33-02-02-29-126-001, 33-02-02-29-129-001, 

and 33-02-02-29-104-002 

A purchase agreement has been signed by both the seller and buyer. The Land Preservation 
Advisory Board believes the property meets the intent of the Land Preservation Program and 
very much looks forward to adding the parcel to the Land Preservation Program. A map 
identifying the property location is attached. 

Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
Although the LPAB has researched the area, the ordinance requires an environmental 
assessment of the recommended parcel. Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr and Huber is in the 
process of performing the assessment. 

The estimated expenses from the Land Preservation Acquisition Fund are: 

13.25 acre property 
Sale Price: 
Estimated Closing: 

$162,500 
$500 

Transfer Taxes and Title Insurance to be paid by the seller. 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution to Approve 
2. Parcel Location Map 
3. Parcel Map 



cl 



Meirk)1~~tn1 T©~\!liu~~~,~ l®i[li)td ~o-®~®wvtaT~U@[li) 
Aprif 13, 2011 



~ 

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, Ml 
230 115 0 230 Feet 

L - - - - : 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, OCTOBER 4, 2016 REGULAR MEETING 

Seconded by Trustee Styka. 

Board discussion: 

*APPROVED* 

• Lot split changes the garage location from back yard to front yard and is in violation of 
Township ordinance 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus 
NAYS: None 
Motion carried 5-0. 

B. Williamstown Township Police Service Contract 
Trustee Styka moved to approve the agreement to continue providing law enforcement 
services to Williamstown Township beginning January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2018 
for the amount of $216,723.00 per calendar year, plus $56.17 per hour for emergency and 
non-emergency responses outside the 80 hours of weekly patrol and to authorize the 
Supervisor and Clerk to sign the agreement. Seconded by Trustee Scales. 

Board discussion: 
• Meridian Township has had a police service contract with Williamstown Township for 

several years 
• Meridian Township receives full reimbursement for services rendered 
• Exhibit A of the contract lists all of the services it provides to Williamstown Township as 

well as to Meridian Township residents 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus 
NAYS: None 
Motion carried 5-0. 

C. Land Preservation Acquisition Recommendation-Serafine Trust 
Treasurer Brixie moved [and read into the record] NOW THEREFORE BE IT 
RESOLVED THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
MERIDIAN, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN, hereby approves the purchase of three 
parcels of land from the Estate of Eileen Serafine as shown on the attached maps with 
accompanying legal descriptions for parcels #33-02-02-29-126-001, 33-02-02-29-129-001, 
and 33-02-02-29-104-002 for the purchase price of $162,500 and that a budget amendment 
be made from the Land Preservation Fund Balance to account number 209.000.000-
971.000 to cover the transaction cost. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Township Board forwards the request to the Planning 
Commission for section 61 review of the properties for its October 24, 2016 meeting for 
approval as to their location, character and extent as a public ground or open space 
effective this date. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Township Board authorizes the Township Clerk, 
Township Attorney and Township Manager to ratify the agreement entered into with the 
Estate of Eileen Serafme, Jan Serafine ("seller") and to take all further actions deemed 
necessary to close such transaction for acceptance of these parcels. 

Seconded by Clerk Dreyfus. 

PAGE6 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN, OCTOBER 4, 2016 REGULAR MEETING *APPROVED* 

Board discussion: 
• Twice the amount of the state equalized value (SEV) of the three (3) parcels is $143,200 

and the Land Preservation Advisory Board (LPAB) ultimately offered more for the property 
• Agreed upon selling price was $22,000 less than the appraisal price of $185,000 
• Property is contiguous to one of the Township's larger preserves 
• Property was of interest to individuals who desired to construct condominiums and 

apartments on site 
• Property is located near multiple family housing 
• The LP AB often offers below twice the SEV of the property 
• The LP AB made an initial offer less than twice the combined SEV 
• Herron Creek runs through the property making it environmentally desirable 

ROLL CALL VOTE: YEAS: Trustee Scales, Styka, Veenstra, Treasurer Brixie, Clerk Dreyfus 
NAYS: None 
Motion carried 5-0. 

D. Set Public Hearing for Okemos Pointe Brownfield-October 18, 2016 
Treasurer Brixie moved to hold a public hearing on the proposed Brownfield Plan for 
Okemos Pointe on October 18, 2016. Seconded by Trustee Scales. 

Board and staff discussion: 
• Every appli~ant has a right to request a public hearing 
• Chronology for the approval process 
• Brownfield plan will be presented to the Ingham County Brownfield Redevelopment 

Authority (ICBRA) on October 14, 2016 
• Applicant to provide information to the Board on October 18, 2016 
• Concern hampering a "steady flow" process may reflect to others who are considering 

investment in Meridian Township 
• At least two (2) Board members expressed concern with inclusion of the interest costs 
• Question as to why the Township does not have its own Brownfield Authority v. Ingham 

County capturing funds 
• Board member preference for the applicant to provide detailed information to the Board 

prior to setting the public hearing 
• Concern the chart depiction of the assessed value is not 50 % of the market value 
• Board member belief the Board is lacking "critical" information 
• Board member belief the 15 % contingency fee is too large and should be reduced to 5 % 
• ICBRA meets the morning of October 14th 
• Board member request for the "results" of the ICBRA meeting of October 14tl1 to be 

included in the October 18, 2016 Township Board packet 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried 4-1 (Supervisor Pro Tern Veenstra). 

13. BOARD DISCUSSION ITEMS 
Supervisor Pro Tern Veenstra opened Public Remarks. 

Leonard Provencher, 5824 Buena Parkway, Haslett, believed one resident on the Transportation 
Commission who represents public transportation should be sufficient. He did not believe rail should 
be included in the commission as there are no rail stops in Meridian Township. Mr. Provencher 
believed the composition of the commission should be more diverse and a five (5) member 
commission is preferred. 

Ody Norkin, 3803 Sandlewood, Okemos, agreed with Mr. Provencher there is no need for rail 
service representation on the prospective Transportation Commission. He expressed appreciation to 
Board members for considering a Transportation Commission, while voicing disappointment over the 
amount of time the Redi-Ride Review Committee spent meeting and yet "nothing" was accomplished. 

PAGE7 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning Commission 

Peter Menser 
Senior Planner 

October 20, 2016 

Rezoning #16040 (Sumbal), request to rezone approximately five acres located at 
2267 Saginaw Highway, 6217 Newton Road, and 6219 Newton Road from PO 
(Professional and Office), RD (Multiple Family), and RA (Single Family, Medium 
Density) to C-2 (Commercial) . 

The public hearing for Rezoning #16040 was held at the October 10, 2016 regular meeting. At 
the public hearing there was a question about the location of the proposed berm that was 
offered as a condition of the rezoning by the applicant. The berm will be required to be installed 
on C-2 (Commercial) portion of the property. 

Planning Commission Options 

The Planning Commission may recommend approval or denial of the rezoning as requested by 
the applicant or recommend a different zoning category. A resolution to recommend approval 
of the request has been provided. 

Attachment: 
1. Resolution to approve 

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\REZONINGS (REZ)\2016\16040 (Sumbal)\REZ 16040.pc2.doc 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE C-2 

RESOLUTION 

Rezoning #16040 
(Sumbal) 

2267 Saginaw Highway 
6217 and 6219 Newton Road 

At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 24th 
day of October, 2016, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

The following resolution was offered by --------- and supported by 

WHEREAS, Ahsan and lffat Sumbal initiated a rezoning of approximately 5 acres 
located at 2267 Saginaw Highway, 6217 Newton Road, and 6219 Newton Road from PO 
(Professional and Office), RD (Multiple Family), and RA (Single Family, Medium Density) to C-2 
(Commercial); and 

WHEREAS, the applicant offered a voluntary condition to construct a berm with trees 
between the C-2 and RA zoning districts; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and discussed the rezoning 
at its meeting on October 10, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed the staff material provided under cover 
memorandum dated October 7, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, C-2 (Commercial) zoning is consistent with the zoning of properties located 
south and northwest of the subject site; and 

WHEREAS, public water and sanitary sewer services are available in the vicinity to 
serve the site. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Rezoning #16040 to rezone 
approximately 5 acres from PO (Professional and Office), RD (Multiple Family), and RA (Single 
Family, Medium Density) to C-2 (Commercial) with the voluntary offer of a condition to construct a 
berm with trees between the C-2 and RA zoning districts. 

ADOPTED: YEAS: 

NAYS: 



Resolution to Approve 
Rezoning #16040 (Sumbal) 
Page 2 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 
true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission on the 24th day of October, 2016. 

John Scott-Craig 
Planning Commission Chairperson 


